ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 14, 2003
3:16 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 155

"An Act relating to the subm ssion of payroll information by
contractors and subcontractors performng work on a public
construction contract; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 159

"An Act relating to the frequency of exam nations of certain
persons licensed to engage in the business of making |oans of
noney, <credit, goods, or things in action; repealing the
requi renent for a state exam nation and eval uation of the Al aska
Commercial Fishing and Agriculture Bank; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED HB 159 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 164
"An Act relating to the state's sovereign immunity for certain
actions regarding injury, illness, or death of state-enployed
seanen and to workers' conpensation coverage for those seanen;
and providing for an effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2003



BILL: HB 155
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON PROQJECT REQUI REMENTS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H FN1: (LWF)

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COVMERCE

03/ 14/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 159
SHORT TI TLE: FI NANCI AL | NSTI TUTI ON EXAM NATI ONS/ CFAB
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0429 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0429 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0429 (H) FN1: ( CED)

03/ 05/ 03 0429 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 14/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

GREG O CLARAY, Commi ssi oner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 155 for the governor.

JOHN BI TNEY, Lobbyi st

for Al aska State Honebuil ders Association

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Asked for additional tinme to submt
testimony on HB 155; stated that honebuil ders do many small jobs
and would be handi capped by $100 fees at the start and end of
each j ob.

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyi st

Al aska State AFL-CI O

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 155, specifically
agai nst having contracting agencies collect certified payroll

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2003



reports and charging all contractors and subcontractors the sane
$200 in fees.

JOHN BROWN, Presi dent

Fai r banks Central Labor Council;

Oper ati ng Engi neers

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposed having contractors send certified
payroll reports to contracting agenci es under HB 155.

DON SHI ESL, Public Wrks Director

City of Wasill a

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 155, noting his
agency has neither the staff nor expertise to process certified
payrol |l reports.

RON TRUI NI

| ronwor kers Local 751

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed HB 155 and supported increasing
penalties for <contractors who don't file certified payrol
reports.

BLAKE JOHNSON

Laborers International Union of North America Local 341

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified against HB 155 and asked how
contracting agencies would handle the certified payroll reports.

SCOIT BRI DGES, Busi ness Representative

General Teanmsters Local 959 Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: In testifying against HB 155, noted that
departnent investigators are unable to prosecute prevailing wage
clainms unless they have all the facts at hand.

VI NCE BELTRAM , Presi dent

Anchorage Western Al aska Buil ding & Trades Counci

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155, noting
the departnment's difficulty in researching prevailing wage
claims without having all the information in house; also favored
a graduated fee to take into account the small contractor.

TI M ROGERS, Legi sl ative Program Coordi nat or
Muni ci pality of Anchorage

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2003



Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke agai nst HB 155, noting the bill makes
the municipality the record keeper for the state wth no
conpensation or direction.

RAYMOND SM TH, Busi ness Manager

I nternational Union of Painters and Allied Trades Local 1140
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Qoposed the departnent weakening its
enforcenment of prevailing wages in HB 155.

MARK DAVI S, Director

Di vision of Banking, Securities & Corporations

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 159 for the governor and
answered questions about small | oan conpanies and audit
procedures for the Alaska Commercial Fishing and Agriculture
Bank.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-21, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:16 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Dahlstrom and Crawford were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn and GQuttenberg arrived as the

nmeeting was in progress.

HB 155- PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON PRQJECT REQUI REMENTS

Nunmber 0075

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 155, "An Act relating to the subm ssion of
payroll information by contractors and subcontractors performng
work on a public construction contract; and providing for an
effective date."

Nunber 0102

GREG O CLARAY, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Labor & Wbrkforce
Devel opnment, presented HB 155, legislation introduced at the
request of the governor. He descri bed how the Wage and Hour

section of the Division of Labor Standards & Safety enforces the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2003



prevailing wage |law [AS 36.05, Wages and Hours of Labor]. The
of fice i nvesti gates conpl aints of nonconpl i ance agai nst
contractors on public projects by examning their certified
payroll reports. He explained that budget cuts have reduced the
clerical staff who exam ne the thousands of certified payrolls
submtted by contractors. At one tinme, there were five
enpl oyees doing this work; now there is one person, he said.

Nunmber 0358

COWM SSI ONER O CLARAY displayed a certified payroll form the
back of the form includes a statenent of conpliance with Title
36 [Public Contracts] which nmust be signed by the contractor.
During the height of the construction season, the departnent
receives 24,000 of these fornms a week, he noted. The |lone clerk
who receives the forns barely has time to file the fornms, nuch
| ess check for errors, he said. Organi zed | abor and i ndivi dua
citizens "police" the accuracy of these payroll fornms and notify
the departnment if a contractor appears to be out of conpliance.
An investigator is assigned to the conplaint, scheduling a site
visit to review payroll records. Comm ssioner O Claray said
that the departnent's head investigator estimates that only 20
percent of the payroll errors are caught.

Nunmber 0602

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY said HB 155 does two things. First, it
sets up a user fee that will support the cost of the Division's
staff. Second, the bill follows the Washington state |aw that

requires the various contracting agencies to receive the
certified weekly payrolls. He said his departnent does not have
the staff to go through these volunes of reports to catch and

correct contractors who are not in conpliance. He noted that
| ast year t he Wage and Hour section conduct ed 540
i nvestigations: 491 under Title 23 [Labor and Wrkers'
Conmpensation] and 49 under Title 36.

Number 0723

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted from his personal experience that
many conplaints don't get to the investigation stage. He said
that if a payroll certification is lacking certain classes of
workers on a job, the clerk will request the information from
the contractor who usually corrects the payroll «certification

right away. He said the departnent is able to recover thousands
of dollars of back or incorrectly reported wages before a
conpl aint reaches the investigation stage.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2003



COW SSI ONER O CLARAY asked whether these <corrections occur
because the clerk discovered the errors.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD explained that a |abor representative
gets lists of jobs by contractors and conpares that information

with the payroll reports. The wunion person notifies the
departnment clerk; she wll call the contractor directly, and
many tinmes that wll result in a correction. He said the
majority of contractors are not trying to cheat; once they are
nmade aware or an error, they correct it. He said that this

process is much preferred to a full-fledged investigation.

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY stated that this bill is a neans for
maki ng the departnent nore effective in enforcenent. He said he
wel comes suggested inprovenents by the conmttee, |abor, and the
publi c.

Number 1002

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY noted that HB 155 would produce $1 mllion
in revenue a year by charging contractors and subcontractors
$100 fees at the start and finish of each job. He said the
adm nistration is seeking sustainable revenue for the division's
work to protect it fromfuture cuts. The bill does not set up a
particular fund for these fees; the noney would flow into the
state's general fund. The contractors would send the certified
payrolls to the contracting agencies. He predicted that this
change woul d i nprove conpliance by contractors.

Nunber 1149

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the low rate of conpliance
woul d inprove with additional investigators. He asked if there
woul d there be increased revenue [fromfines].

COM SSI ONER O CLARAY said enforcenent staff were cut severa
years ago, and the admnistration is trinmng the budget, not
addi ng nore positions.

Number 1219

REPRESENTATI VE = CRAWORD  expressed strong concerns about
di spersing the certified payrolls to different contracting
agenci es. He explained that federal contracts use that system
He said it has taken him as long as a year to track down a
federal contracting agent and to get the payroll information.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2003



He said it is so nmuch nore convenient to call the Departnent of
Labor & Workforce Devel opnent offices in Juneau, Anchorage, or

Fai r banks, where the payroll reports are in a central
repository. He asked if the departnment elimnates this single
position, who would [do this function] in the different
contracting agencies. Wo will nmake sure that the contractors

are paying the correct wages, he queried.
Number 1313

COM SSIONER O CLARAY replied that each contracting agency
receives a percentage of the contract funds to nonitor contract
conpliance to neet Title 36 requirenents. He said he
understands that it's nore convenient to have the docunents al
filed in the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent but
indicated that the clerk has no tine to find errors. He invited
the commttee to find a solution and funding for this problem
He suggested that HB 155 could require the contracting agent to
assign a person to review payroll conpliance. He agreed that
it's a cost shift from the general fund [Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent] to the [contracting agencies].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD commented that it's inportant to make
the payroll conpliance as streamined as possible. He suggested

requiring a bi-weekly or nmonthly-certified payroll report --
instead of a weekly report -- or an on-line filing for those who
have conputer capability. He said he spoke to his wunion

counterparts in Washington state and was told that the certified
payroll reports are accessible in the Seattle area but not in
the renote areas. He said that he is very concerned about
tracking down certified payrolls in rural Alaska, for exanple, a
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities contract in
Bethel. He said that the best part of Alaska' s systemis having
[the payroll reports] in a centralized place. He said he has
wat ched the office shrink fromthree clerks to one person who is
very overwor ked. He said she saves people thousands of dollars
per nont h.

Number 1605

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked about the anpbunt of the fees and
why they are being charged: $100 at the beginning and end of

the project. She also noted on page 2, line 19-20, that the
contractor nust get approval from the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent to pay the subcontractor. Paynent can be

withheld if the contractor hasn't paid the $200 fees and for
several other reasons, including subcontractor violations.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2003



COWMM SSI ONER O CLARAY said the intent is that the violator would
not be paid. Wthhol ding of paynent is used to enforce the
current | aw. The departnment has to wait until the end of the
job to withhold final paynent; however the contracting agency
can stop paynent imredi ately upon proof of a violation.

Number 1734

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he received many faxes and letters
opposi ng HB 155. He referenced a [March 14, 2003 fax] from
Al aska Concrete Sawing [in Anchorage], which illustrates what
the $100 fee nmeans to a small contractor who spends |ess than
four hours total on a job. Representative Crawford said he
often does welding jobs that take only a day or two. |If the fee
is $100 in and $100 out of a job, contractors won't be able to
pass that along to the contracting agency. He suggested a fee
break on the size of job. He said for a general contractor
building a job the size of the Houston high school, $100 is not
an issue, but for a business |ike Al aska Concrete Sawing, it is.

COWMM SSI ONER O CLARAY said he agreed and suggested that the bil
use a graduated fee based on the anount of the contracts.

Nunmber 1816

JOHN BI TNEY, Lobbyist for Al aska State Honebuil ders Association
[ "Honebui | ders"], asked for additional tinme for his group to
review the bill. For the nost part, he said, honebuilders are
small fam |y-owned operations. If they're going to bid on
prevailing wage jobs, they prefer a level playing field that has
a consistent conpliance system He said the Honebuil ders would
like to work with the departnent to make this bill work. In
response to a question from Chair Anderson, he stated that the
$100 in and out fee would severely inpact honebuilders.

Honebui |l ders are doing very small, one- or two-day jobs at the
request of nunerous agencies; they augnent their normal work
with these snmall |obs. He agreed to bring in correspondence

next week fromthe Honebuil ders group.

Nunber 1936

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyist, Alaska State AFL-CIO stated that his
group opposes HB 155 as drafted. He said his nmain concern is
who gets the certified payrolls. This bill increases revenue to
the departnent but shifts work away fromit. He said he agrees

that the fees should be increased on a graduated scale, but the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2003



funds shoul d be dedicated to the departnent so it can do the job
correctly.

MR. ETHERIDGE said he wants to see a level playing field and

everybody paid at the proper rate. Most of his union nenbers
are inforned about their rate of pay; if they're not paid
correctly, they <call the wunion office, which addresses the
problem with the departnent. However, he expressed concern
about the nonunion workers who are not paid properly. If the
departnment stays on the contractor, the enployees will get paid
the proper rate. He said that having the contracting agency
nonitor the worker's wages is |like sending the dog to watch the
hanbur ger. In nost cases, the contracting agency would prefer

to pay workers a | ower wage because it can get nore work done at
a |l ower price.

MR. ETHERI DGE expressed concern that the contracting agencies
woul d set aside and forget [the payroll reports]. He said in
sone areas, the nmandatory worker training is not happening. The
contracting agencies are supposed to be nonitoring the training,
and they're not doing it.

Nunber 2070

JOHN  BROWN, Presi dent, Fai rbanks  Central Labor Counci | ;
Qperating Engineers, said that the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnment needs the certified payroll reports to
continuing enforcing the prevailing wage. He said in his work
he needs that information easily available. Sending the payrol
reports to various agencies would hinder the unions' ability to
help the departnent enforce the prevailing wage |aw Any
i ncreased revenue should be given to the departnent, which needs
it to enforce the law as witten.

Nunber 2140

DON SHI ESL, Public Wrks Director, Gty of Wsilla, asked
Commi ssioner O Caray if a $100 fee nust acconpany the
subm ssi on of every payroll.

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY expl ained that the $100 fee would be paid
at the initial registration and then again at the close of the
j ob.

MR, SHIESL testified that in larger contracts, these fees wll

be passed on to the contracting agency. An agency like the Cty
of Wasilla will ultinmately be paying these fees out of their

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2003



contracts. He said his bigger concern is in the contract
conpliance part of HB 155. He said he has neither the manpower
nor the training to nonitor certified payroll reports. Wasilla
and other small cities do not receive a percentage of funds for
contract conpliance. He said he is concerned about a new type
of conpliance whose cost will be shifted to |ocal governnent.
He also said the commttee should | ook at increasing penalties
to force contractors to submt these certified payrolls.

Number 2255

RON TRU NI, Ironworkers Local 751, testified that his main
concern with HB 155 is enforcenent. He said that penalties are
not severe enough; he said they are currently Cass A
m sdeneanors. He said ignorance of the law [requiring the
paynent of prevailing wages] is no excuse for contractors. Hi s
ot her concern involves the contracting officer [who would be
receiving the certified payroll reports]. Organi zed | abor wll

be nmonitoring the contracting officers rather than focusing on
the real problem of watching that contractors conply with state
wage and hour | aws.

TAPE 03-21, SIDE B
Number 2367

BLAKE JOHNSON, Laborers International Union of North Anerica
Local 341, said that contractors will have a hard tine keeping
track of where to send their certified payrolls if they are sent
to other agencies besides the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce

Devel opnent . He wused the exanple of the Anchorage School
District, which wouldn't have the personnel to deal wth
certified payroll reports. He said the state won't save mnuch
noney elimnating the two positions that handle the certified
payrol |l reports. If the reports are in one |ocation, the unions
can [continue to] cone in and look at the reports. He

reconmended increasing the fines of contractors who are not in
conpliance, and then the state would have nore noney for
i nvestigations.

Nunber 2294

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD commented that [paying prevailing wages]
is not just a union issue. He said there are nmany nonunion
firms that check the payroll reports to see if their conpetitors
are paying the correct prevailing wages, making sure that there
is a level playing field. He said that one of his constituents,
Consol i dated Enterprises, [Anchorage] submitted a [March 13,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 14, 2003



2003] letter contained in the nenbers' packets. He said this
conpany is a nonunion conpany that regularly checks its
conpetitors' wage records

Number 2220

SCOTT BRI DGES, Business Representative, General Teansters Loca
959 Alaska, said he represents workers in the construction

industry and favors a graduated approach to the user fee. He
proposed having the contractor on the larger project pay a
| arger fee. He said this is an enforcenent issue as well. He

said investigators at the Wage and Hour section take far nore
[ wage conplaints] than they can respond to adequately. He said
he didn't think departnent investigators can pursue clains that
don't conme with all the facts in hand. He said from his
experience with the division, unprosecuted clains reach into the
hundreds of thousands of dollars annually. The dispersal of the
departnent's responsibilities to these contracting agencies
woul d further dilute the wage earner's [opportunity to receive a

fair wage]. The contract conpliance noney given to contracting
agencies mght cover technical issues but it does not include
nonitoring wage and hour issues. Contractors could send two

copies by email to the departnent, which could forward the
second copy to the contracting agency.

Nunber 2081

VINCE BELTRAM , President, Anchorage Wstern Al aska Building &
Trades Council, Anchorage, opposed HB 155. He said if the
departnment lets the certified payroll go out the door to the
contracting agencies, departnent enployees will be chasing after

the information instead of having it at their fingertips as they
presently do; they need it in hand to efficiently process a
payroll violation claim He citied the bill's briefing paper
that states that contractors are required to file duplicate
reports with both the contractor and the departnment, but that's
true only wunder I|imted circunstances. He disagreed that
elimnating a range 12 position, which costs the state | ess than
$40,000 a year, would save the state noney. He opined that the
absence of that position would create additional work for the
wage and hour investigators and cost the state much nore than
$40,000. The departnent has the authority under the statute to
do enforcenent and inpose fines and penalties. The user fee has
sonre nerit if it could be applied to enforcenment of this
program

Nunmber 1926

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if he preferred a graduated or a flat
fee, if a fee were inposed.

MR. BELTRAM replied that a graduated fee would be fairer to
smal | er contractors. He said he wants any fee funneled back to
the departnment to make this a viable program The prevailing
wage programfalls a little short of being highly effective.

Nunber 1882

TIM ROGERS, Legislative Program Coordinator, Minicipality of
Anchorage, noted that HB 155 makes the city the record keeper
for the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent. There's no
instruction on how to handle the forns nor conpensation for
staffing the work. The state would collect $200 per contractor
but pass the work on to the contracting agency. There's no
provision for enmergency work, for exanple, the recent w ndstorm
[in Anchorage]. The city cannot approve final paynment until
authorized by the state, but the city has no idea how | ong that
will take, and it has to pay high interest on the nonies owed to
the contractors. If every contractor and subcontractor is
assessed the $200 fees, either small contractors won't bid on
the projects, thus driving up the cost of projects, or they wll

pass the expense on to the municipality. One way or another
the municipality will end up doing nore work and wll pay nore
noney on the contracts. He said Mayor Ceorge Werch wll be

sending in a letter [detailing these concerns].
Number 1786

RAYMOND SM TH, Busi ness Mnager, International Union of Painters
and Allied Trades Local 1140, said he has no problem with a
graduated user fee, which would be passed on [to the contracting
agency] anyway. He said it would be a real detrinent if the
departnment gave up [this nonitoring] on behalf of the worker.
He said he has just sent a letter today to the conm ssioner
about a contractor with violations in two |ocations. Because
the person filing the reports doesn't have tinme to review them
everybody has to be watching for payroll abuses, including union
and nonuni on contractors. |If the departnment is |ooking for nore
revenue, he said, the state should nail the violators with |arge
fines. He said he couldn't stress enough the state's need to
enforce the laws on the books and to return user fees to the
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent. The prevailing
wage program is viable and needs to stay where it is, he
af firmed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2003



Nunmber 1656

CHAI R ANDERSON sunmarized that HB 155 needs sone revision.
Peopl e have testified that there's nerit in the fees if they are

gr aduat ed. He said the commttee will consider the idea of
having contractors file certified payrol | reports wth
contracting agencies instead of the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent . He said he will hold testinony open and
keep the bill in commttee.

Nunmber 1613

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN comrented on the consistent testinony of the
public favoring graduated fees for this program for the
busi ness |icense, and for other prograns.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that the starting point for an amendnent to
HB 155 will be a graduated fee. [HB 155 was held in conmttee.]

HB 159- FI NANCI AL | NSTI TUTI ON EXAM NATI ONS/ CFAB

Nunmber 1580

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 159, "An Act relating to the frequency of
exam nations of certain persons licensed to engage in the
busi ness of making |oans of noney, credit, goods, or things in
action; repealing the requirenent for a state exam nation and
evaluation of the Alaska Comercial Fishing and Agriculture
Bank; and providing for an effective date."

Nunber 1542
MARK  DAVI S, Director, Di vision of Banki ng, Securities &

Cor porations, Department of Community and Econom c Devel opnent,
presented HB 159 on behalf of the governor. He expl ai ned that

the bill mkes two changes, one to the banking code and the
other to Title 44 [State Governnent]. The first change reduces
the frequency of the division's examnation of small |oan
conpanies fromevery 12 nonths to every 18 nonths. He said this
change will bring the schedule for exam nations for small |oan
conpanies in line with the rest of the banking code and wl

elimnate the need for an additional bank exam ner. He opined
that this change wll not affect the integrity of the
exam nations, and it still allows the division to examne a
smal |l | oan conpany nore frequently, if that is deened advi sable.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 14, 2003



VR. DAVIS said the second <change would discontinue the
di vision's annual exam nation of the Al aska Commercial Fishing
and Agriculture Bank (CFAB). At present CFAB has no state funds
and does not accept deposits fromthe public. He explained that
CFAB operates as a cooperative for the benefit of its nenbers
and borrowers, and it is required by statute to prepare an
annual audit by an independent outside auditor. That audit
requires CFAB to include financial statenents audited by outside
auditors; the audit nust discuss the bank's circunstances and
any other pertinent information under AS 44.81.200 [Reports and
publ i cations]. House Bill 159 does not alter that requirenent
nor does it change CFAB from being subject to a legislative
audi t . He said that if HB 159 is passed, the audited report
will still be provided to the |egislature. In conclusion, he
said that division officials believe an annual bank exam is
unnecessary because CFAB has repaid its state funding;, it does
not lend noney to the public; and it's subject to both
i ndependent and | egislative audits.

Nunber 1388

MR DAVIS replied to a question from Chair Anderson about
whether there are enough examiners now to conplete all the
required exans. He said if the requirenent for the CFAB
exam nation is deleted and the snmall |oan exans change to the

18-nmonth frequency, there is sufficient staff to handle the
workload in a tinmely manner.

Nunber 1354

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the bill affects pawnbrokers and
second hand deal ers.

MR. DAVIS explained that the division will continue to exam ne
smal | | oan conpanies that lend up to $25,000 and are allowed to

charge in excess of usury under specific procedures. Under the
FDI C [Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation] and the National

Credit Union Admnistration rules, all bank institutions are
exam ned 18 nonths or nore frequently. He said the division
would like the authority to do exam nations wusing that sane
schedule. That way, he said, the division could concentrate on
smal | | oan conpanies that have had violations or appear to need
gui dance.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how nany conpanies would be affected
by this bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2003



MR. DAVIS said he did not know how many snmall | oan conpanies the
di vision reviews but said he would provide that information.

Number 1254

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if CFAB had a position on
HB 159.

MR. DAVIS responded that he met wth the president of CFAB
regarding the previous admnistration's practice of posting the

division's report on the Internet. The CFAB officials said the
report should be confidential under the banking statutes, and
M. Davis said he agreed. The bank would still be subject to

| egi slative audit so this sane information would be provided [to
the |egislature]. He didn't learn from CFAB officials whether
they benefited fromthe division s exam nation.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about the liability of an
out si de independent auditor, given the recent audit scandal at
Enron Cor porati on.

Nunmber 1098

MR. DAVIS replied that outside auditors owe duty both to the
board and to the sharehol ders.

CHAI R ANDERSON reiterated that the auditor KPMG fornmerly Pete
Marwick, is liable if there are errors in the audit.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG nentioned that his concern was about
financi al oversight.

MR, DAVIS said an outside auditor could be liable either to the
board or to a sharehol der because of fiduciary duties that run

froma director to a sharehol der. He said the directors would
have negotiated the contract and scope of engagenent for an
outsi de auditor. If there was an error in the audit, the

auditor could be held liable in a | awsuit.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if anything has changed in
Al aska since the Enron scandal

MR. DAVIS said he couldn't comrent about changes in Al aska but

said the accounting industry's Financial Accounting Standards
Board is revising audit practices.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 14, 2003



Number 0950

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 159 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 159 was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Commttee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:37 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 14, 2003



